UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council

E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
12 April 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 20t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 7 April 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai r person: Ms. ANDERSON (I'reland)

CONTENTS

STATEMENT BY THE M NI STER FOR HUMAN RI GHTS OF THE DEMOCRATI C REPUBLI C OF
THE CONGO

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUVMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, | NCLUDI NG

(a)  QUESTION OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Comr ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99-11989 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

STATEMENT BY THE M NI STER FOR HUMAN RI GHTS OF THE DEMOCRATI C REPUBLI C OF
THE CONGO

1. M. SHE OKI TUNDU (Denocratic Republic of the Congo) said that no one had
the right, individually or collectively, to ignore the suffering of civilian
popul ations - particularly children, wonmen and the elderly - in times of armed

conflict, whether in Kosovo, Sierra Leone, Cuinea-Bissau or his own country.
In that context, his Mnistry had recently issued a report on the massive
human rights violations by the aggressor countries - Uganda, Rwanda and
Burundi - in the eastern provinces of his country.

2. The Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the
Denocrati c Republic of the Congo had visited the country for a week in
February 1999. He had been able to see for hinself the efforts made by the
authorities to pronote human rights, despite the unjust aggression to which
the country had been subjected; he had al so pointed out sone shortcom ngs,

whi ch the Government had noted, although it was unable to accept all his
views, particularly with regard to characterization of the conflict. It had,
however, shown its willingness to cooperate with international organizations
and non-governnmental organizations (NGOs) concerned with human rights as well
as with the Special Rapporteur. He appealed to the international conmunity to
refrain from maki ng constant criticisnms and, instead, to provide extensive and
constructive assistance to protect the cause of human rights. The very fact
of the establishnment of his Mnistry was an earnest of the Government's good

i ntentions.

3. He al so expected the international comunity to express its firm and
unequi vocal condemation of the war of aggression being waged against his
country by Uganda, Rwanda and Burundi, which were occupying a substantial part
of the country's territory in contenpt of such basic principles as respect for
sovereignty, territorial integrity and self-determnation. Contrary to the

m sappr ehensi on of the Special Rapporteur, there was no doubt as to the

i nternational nature of the conflict: the Ugandan and Rwandan Governnents had
acknow edged that their troops were on Congol ese territory and there was anple
evidence inplicating Burundi also. The so-called rebellion fonented anong
some Congol ese could not exonerate the CGovernnents that were really behind the
war of aggression. Their justification for their actions could not stand up
to serious scrutiny.

4, From the outset, the aggressors had exhibited unprecedented barbarity
t hrough mass deportations, summary executions and massacres. They had

al so deliberately spread sexually transmtted di seases by di spatching

some 2,000 Ugandan soldiers with AIDS or H 'V to devastate the popul ati on by
rape. They were also guilty of systematically plundering Congol ese wealth,
above and bel ow ground, including gold and other minerals, coffee and wood,
and exterm nating such rare animal species as okapi, white rhinoceros and
nmountai n gorill as.

5. Al t hough responsible for the war and the war crinmes, the Tuts
extrem sts were cleverly claimng to be victins, as though the genoci de of
Rwandan Tutsis in 1994 justified the massacre of Hutu refugees on Congol ese



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 3

territory. Their aimwas to create a “Tutsiland”, cynically trading on their
past victim zation. Their claimthat the State or the Congol ese people were
comm tting genoci de was groundl ess. Violence played no part in his country's
cultural tradition and the CGovernnent gave Tutsis its full protection

6. Tutsis living in shelters in Kinshasa and Katanga were not prisoners;
they were there for their own safety, as the International Conmttee of the
Red Cross (ICRC) could testify. The United States of Anerica and Canada had
expressed a desire to receive sonme of those people and his Governnment had no
objection. Any solution to the problem of the vul nerable people in such
shelters was wel cone. He added that the State had no connection - as asserted
by the aggressor countries - with the Hutu mlitias (Interahamwe) or those

el enments of the former Rwandan Arnmed Forces (FAR) considered to have comitted
genoci de.

7. The denocrati zation process would continue. H's own Mnistry undertook
to pronote the Commission's resolution on the protection of human rights
defenders. He urged the Commi ssion to condemn the aggression against his
country, to demand the unconditional w thdrawal of foreign troops, to support
the i dea of deploying an international intervention force along the frontiers,
to support the President's initiative of organizing a national debate of
reconciliation and to demand the di spatch of an international conmm ssion of
inquiry to the areas controlled by the aggressors. Any assistance the

i nternational comunity could give would be gratefully received.

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUVMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N ANY PART
OF THE WORLD, | NCLUDI NG

(a) QUESTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS

(agenda item 9) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/1999/7/25-27, 30-38, 40-43, 107, 117, 119,
121, 125-127, 129-137 and 139; E/CN.4/1999/NGO 3, 11, 12, 16-20, 29 and 61
S/ 1998/ 581; A/ 53/402 and 490; A/ 52/539)

8. M. ABDELBAG (World Federation of Denocratic Youth) said that, in the
Sudan, gross and massive violations were conmtted daily by the Governnent

agai nst real and imaginary political opponents. Such violations were
committed with inpunity, since the courts were barred from entertaining

conpl aints on actions by the executive. The Governnent was clearly intent on
a mlitary victory in the southern Sudan in order to inpose its progranme of

I sl am zation and, in the 16 years of civil conflict, it had failed to take any
prisoners of war. Its recent adoption of a Constitution and other attenpts to
gain legitimacy had proved a charade, because the | aws excl udi ng pro-denocracy
political parties and free trade unions from participation in public life
remai ned in place.

9. M. XIAO Q ang (Robert F. Kennedy Menorial) said ..

10. M. WANG M n (China), speaking on a point of order, said that the
speaker had no consultative status with the Econom ¢ and Social Council and
was thus not entitled to take the fl oor




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 4

11. The CHAI RPERSON confirmed that the speaker was an accredited nenber of a
non- gover nment al organi zati on (NGO). NGO representatives had, of course, to
speak on behal f of their organizations and not on their own behal f.

12. M. XIAO Q ang (Robert F. Kennedy Menorial) said that, shortly after
signing the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the Chinese
Government had adopted two |aws further restricting freedom of association
expression and information. It had al so | aunched a systematic canpai gn of
arresting human rights and denocracy activists and | abour organi zers.
Peaceful attenpts to register the China Denpbcracy Party as an i ndependent
political party had been thwarted, the main organizers of the initiative
havi ng been arrested and sentenced to long terns of inprisonment. It was
clear that no challenge to Comuni st Party rule would be tol erated and that
the Governnent did not feel bound by any international human rights

obl i gati ons.

13. The Commi ssion should therefore express its outrage by adopting a

resol uti on condeming the deteriorating human rights situation in China and
thus send a clear signal to the Chinese authorities that the world's highest
human rights body did not accept their denial of fundamental human rights. By
supporting the resolution, nenber States would inprove China's chances for a
peaceful transition to a just and truly stable society and enmpower the
advocates of reform and those Chinese struggling to establish respect for

i nternati onal standards.

14. M. DAR (International Islamc Federation of Student Organizations) said
that, in the course of the systematic canpaign of repression by India in
occupi ed Jammu and Kashmir, mlitary and paranmilitary forces were able to
target the Kashmir people with full inpunity and under official protection
Indian | egislation gave full inmmunity to those forces and the Indian Nationa
Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion had admitted its inability to investigate conplaints
of abuses by them He hoped that the Comm ssion would take effective action
to force India to halt its canpai gn of repression

15. M. QADIR (MuslimWrld League) said that there had been a drive agai nst
religious mnorities in India |led by H ndu fundanmentalist groups, sone of
which drew their inspiration fromHitler. Violence against Mislinms was
comonpl ace, but there had al so been a sharp increase in attacks on the
Christian community and m ssionaries. Indians belonging to the | ower castes,
and particularly the women, were regularly subjected to physical violence and
abuse. There was an active involvenment of official Indian agencies, including
the police, and of private mlitias which had nurdered at |east 58 Dalits
(“untouchabl es”) in Bihar since Decenber 1997. There had al so been cases of
Dalits and bonded | abourers being attacked with the connivance of the police.
Systematic violence by the police was al so directed at peoples seeking to
exercise their right to self-determ nati on, such as the Kashmri people and

t he peopl es of north-east India.

16. Ms. DAVIS (Freedom House) said that the nunber of electoral denocracies,
representing 61 per cent of the world' s countries, had risen by 21 per cent
over the past 15 years to 117. Many CGovernnents, however, stil

systematically suppressed the basic rights of their citizens, the worst



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 5

vi ol ators being those of Afghanistan, Cuba, the Denocratic People's Republic
of Korea, Equatorial Cuinea, lIraq, the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya, Myanmar,

Saudi Arabia, Somalia, the Sudan, the Syrian Arab Republic, Turknenistan and
Viet Nam In Cuba, in particular, the human rights situation was
deteriorating rapidly and she urged the Comm ssion to consider the appoi ntnent
of a Special Rapporteur for Cuba.

17. M. MARSHALL (Freedom House) said that the Sudan's non-Mislim and

nmoder ate Muslim popul ati on faced genoci de. The Sudanese Governnent's
scorched-earth tactics had resulted in the deaths of nearly 2 mllion people
and the displacenment of 5 mllion. The Comm ssion shoul d unequivocally
condemm the Governnent of the Sudan for sponsoring war crines and demand the

i nposition of sanctions and the stationing of human rights nonitors throughout
the country.

18. China had recently intensified its already harsh persecution of
religious mnorities which persisted in worshippi ng outside governnment
control. Many Christians had been terribly ill-treated by the police.

19. Ms. SCHILT (Association of Refugees and Displaced Persons of Bosnia and
Her zegovi na) said that the atrocities against defenceless civilians in Kosovo
were an exact repetition of those in Bosnia and Herzegovina a few years
earlier and were commtted by the same people. The international comrunity
shoul d not | ose sight of the existing displacenment problens in Bosnia and

Her zegovi na despite the Kosovo energency. It had been all eged that over

90 per cent of the Bosnian Serb refugees living in the Republika Srpska did
not wish to return to their pre-war hones el sewhere in Bosnia. Her

organi zation chall enged that allegation. On the basis of permanent contacts
wi th refugee associations it was convinced that a nuch |arger number of Serb
refugees wi shed to return to their places of origin

20. Returns on an individual, spontaneous basis, in which there had been an
encouragi ng i ncrease over the past nonths, were nore effective than
project-driven returns and she suggested that organi zations involved in the
return process should adopt the principle that “resources followthe
returnees” and cooperate with the refugee associations in order to obtain
first-hand i nformation.

21. Ms. TANAKA (I nternational Myvenent against Discrimnation and Racisn
said that the Governnent of Sri Lanka had failed to keep its pronmise to
facilitate denocratization and respect for the rule of law. Two police

of ficers who had been found guilty of human rights violations had been
promoted and their fines paid by the State. Censorship of war-rel ated news
conti nued and governnent officials had conducted a vicious canpai gn agai nst
the free nedia movenent after independent journalists had exposed corruption
and violence in recent elections. A 1998 nodification of Sri Lankan

| egi sl ati on endangered the freedom of association of NGOs and contravened the
Constitution and International Covenant on Civil and Political R ghts.

Har assment of the Tami| community continued and political violence associated
with provincial elections had escal ated. She urged the Sri Lankan Governnent
to honour its conmitnment to restore peace and ensure denocracy.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 6

22. M. WANGCHUK (I nternational Union of Socialist Youth) said that the
human rights situation in Tibet continued to deteriorate. Two peacefu
denonstrations in a Lhasa prison had been brutally suppressed in 1998, with
11 prisoners killed by the security forces. The authorities had nade no
official inquiry into those killings. Since the visit of the Specia
Rapporteur on religious intolerance in 1994, the Chinese authorities, in
their endeavour to transform Tibet into an atheist region, had banned al
public display of photographs of the Dalai Lama, was holding the 9-year-old
Panchen Lama in an undi scl osed | ocation, and had expelled nearly 10,000 nonks
and nuns for opposing patriotic re-education at religious institutions. There
were nearly 1,100 known Ti betan political prisoners in Chinese prisons, the
majority of them nonks and nuns, and 60 of them had died fromtorture since
1986. The Chinese authorities maintained that human rights issues must be
resol ved through di al ogue, yet their behaviour remai ned confrontational, and
he urged the Conm ssion to appoint a special rapporteur to investigate the
human rights situation in Tibet.

23. M. WN (International Peace Bureau) said he was di sappoi nted by the
def ensi ve response of the Myanmar regime to the Commi ssion's constructive
recomendations. In the face of the deteriorating human rights and econonic
situation, the National League for Denocracy (NLD) had again asked the
mlitary regine to convene parliament by 21 August 1998, adding that, if the
regime refused, the party would itself do so. The regine's response had been
to step up its canpaign to wi pe out the denocratic nmovement. In addition to
its constant attacks on Aung San Suu Kyi and the party | eadership, the
mlitary had | aunched a psychol ogi cal canpaign in the media, announcing
resignations of party nmenbers and transfers of office property to the |loca
authorities. Approximately 190 menbers of parlianent were incarcerated in
pri sons or “guest houses”, where treatnent could be life-threatening.

However, in Septenber 1998, the parties that had won the overwhelnming majority
of parlianmentary seats had forned the Comm ttee Representing the People's
Parliament (CRPP), an action that was a necessary and legitimte step towards
the restoration of a denocratic system

24. M. HTUN (Worldview International Foundation) said that, once known as
the rice bow of Asia, Myanmar was currently classified as a | east devel oped
country, with one third of the rural population living in absolute poverty.
The confiscation of [and wi thout conpensation was a form of punishment applied
to farnmers who failed to sell their quota of crops at prices set by the
Governnment. The authorities had been known to confiscate rice stored by
peasants for their household use and even seed rice on the grounds that they
had not met their official quota.

25. Problems in the hill areas along the country's borders, which had
suffered fromlong periods of neglect and isolation, had been conpounded by
the current regine's policy of forced relocation and | abour, extortion

| ooti ng and destruction of crops in the course of counter-insurgency
operations. MIllions of villagers had been driven fromtheir honel and, which
had been declared by the arnmy to be a free-fire zone and the traditiona

subsi stence econony had been destroyed. The Comm ssion should request the
Speci al Rapporteur on Myanmar, in future reports, to focus also on violations
of econom c, social and cultural rights.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 7

26. Ms. STOTHARD (Aliran Kesedaran Rakyat - National Consciousness Myvenent)
said that the bizarre descriptions used by the representative of Myanmar to
gl oss over the brutalities and oppression inflicted on the people of that

country were outrageous. It was insulting to describe forced |abour as a
“voluntary contribution to community devel opment”. The regi ne m ght next
choose to describe extrajudicial killings as “voluntary participation in

target practice”.

27. The NLD had suffered the worst repression in recent years because of its
decision to convene the People's Parlianent. Mre than 150 NLD nenbers of
parliament were being detained and three had died in custody. Most detainees
were denied famly visits, |egal counsel and nedical care. The
representatives of the mlitary regine should visit the refugee canps and

pri sons thensel ves before uttering glib denials before the Conm ssion. She
chal l enged the regime to allow the Special Rapporteur free access to the
country and to honour its conmitnment to a political solution by entering

into a dialogue with the denmocracy novenent under the | eadership of

Aung San Suu Kyi .

28. M. MOCONG ONGUENE (World Alliance of Reformed Churches) said that his
organi zati on, which maintai ned a presence in Equatorial Guinea through the
Presbyterian Church there, had observed a | ack of political will on the part
of the Government to fulfil its obligations to protect human rights and honour
its commtnents to pronote the denocratization of the country. The concl usion
of the Special Rapporteur in his accurate report (E/ CN. 4/1999/41), that no
progress had been achieved in the area of human rights was thus not

surprising. The few perpetrators of human rights violations who had been
tried at all had been swiftly released or given very |ight sentences.
Government pledges to deal with inmpunity had been enpty and there was no hope
for any inprovement in the situation. The nost recent elections were supposed
to have been free and transparent, yet the Government had once again
mani pul ated them i nposing new voting requirements and forcing citizens to
vote at gunpoint. Using various irregularities, the Governnment had managed to
obtain 75 out of 80 seats in the House of Representatives.

29. M. AHDEROM (Baha'i International conmunity) said that nenbers of the
Baha'i faith in the Islam c Republic of Iran continued to be inprisoned and in
sonme cases sentenced to death for their religious beliefs. There were
unofficial reports that the death sentences on two Baha'i prisoners had been
lifted and that Baha'i youth were again being allowed to enrol in the
pre-university year of high school, but those reports had not been confirned.

30. In his report on the situation of human rights in the Islamc Republic
of lran (E/CN. 4/1999/32) the Special Representative had said that the status
of the Baha'is had to be addressed. The Comm ssion mght wish to recall in

that connection the recommendati ons made by the Special Rapporteur on
religious intolerance in 1996, when he had urged the Governnment of the Islamc
Republic of Iran to re-establish the Baha'i institutions, which forned the
core around which Baha'i comunity life revol ved

31. Despite relentl ess persecution, the Baha'i comrunity had survived
because of the courage it had derived fromthe nunmerous resol utions adopted by



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 8

t he Conmi ssion and other United Nations bodies. The time had cone to identify
specific ways in which the Iranian Governnent could inplement the
recommendati ons of the Special Rapporteur and the Special Representative.

32. M. VEI Jingsheng (Transnational Radical Party) said that he had been
arrested in Beijing in 1979 and inprisoned for 18 years for having advocated
the denocratization of China. He expressed gratitude to the many countries
and NGOs whi ch had worked to obtain his rel ease, which neverthel ess had not
resulted in freedom since he had been forced by the Chinese Government into
exi | e abroad. The Chinese Governnment's refusal to allow himback into China
showed that it did not respect human rights.

33. Shortly after its signature of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights, the Chinese CGovernnent had begun a new and massive wave of
arrests of pro-dempocracy human rights and | abour activists, many of whom had
recei ved harsh sentences. It had established a central agency ained at

“nipping in the bud” all political organizations outside the Comunist Party.

34. Hi s organi zation did not oppose efforts to engage in dialogue with the
Chi nese Governnment on the question of human rights unless that meant
abandoni ng political pressure. Followi ng the massacre at Ti ananmen Square in
1989, the countries of the world had inposed sanctions agai nst China, and the
sentences given the student |eaders had been relatively light. 1In recent
years, however, as countries began to favour dial ogue over pressure, the sanme
i ndi vi dual s had been given nmuch harsher sentences.

35. The Chi nese Governnent should conmply with the international conventions
it had signed and with its own | egislation: for exanple, since the charge of
bei ng a counter-revol utionary had been elimnated from Chinese law, it should
rel ease all prisoners convicted on that charge, including all the recently
arrested dissidents and unofficial publishers.

36. Ms. BIONDI BIRD (International Confederation of Free Trade Unions) said
that violations of trade-union rights were crinmes agai nst humanity. The

Conf ederati on was deeply concerned at the worsening situation in China, where
di ssidents had received prison sentences for calling for trade-union freedom
or trying to organi ze i ndependent trade unions. Such detentions were in
violation of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, which
Chi na had signed in October 1998.

37. The Confederation had addressed letters to trade unions in both Serbia
and Kosovo expressing its support for workers and their famlies and urging
themto continue to pronote dial ogue and peace. It condemed the arrest and

subsequent assassination by Serbian forces in Kosovo of an independent
trade-union | eader and his famly.

38. In the Republic of Korea, there were hundreds of trade unionists
| angui shing in prison, 500 of them having been arrested in 1998 al one.

39. The Confederation was concerned about the situation in Myanmar and the
suspensi on of trade-union rights at the water and energy authority in



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 9

Paki st an, where the very existence of the |ocal |abour union and the
trade-uni on novenent in general was threatened. Trade union activities were
al so severely conprom sed in the banking sector

40. Trade union rights were also violated in countries in Latin America and
in Africa. Owing to time constraints, she requested that copies of her
statement be circulated to the representatives of all countries cited in it as
havi ng viol ated trade-union rights.

41. M. NWIDO (Comm ssion of the Churches on International Affairs of the
World Council of Churches) said that his organization had recently visited

I ndonesia, a country which was experiencing a series of interrelated crises.
Cl ashes between civilian denonstrators and the nilitary, and ethnic and
religious violence had resulted in loss of life, the destruction of religious
sites and other human rights violations that the authorities had done little
to prevent or prosecute. The Government nust bring to justice all those

i nvolved in ethnic and communal violence and ensure the credibility of the
forthcom ng el ections. The Government should al so address the demands of the
peopl e of East Tinor, Aceh and Irian Jaya and enact |egislation to give
greater provincial autonomy. The conditions inmposed by Indonesia's
international creditors, and particularly the International Mnetary Fund

(I MF) shoul d be changed and the national dialogue with the peopl e of

Irian Jaya agreed by the President should be pursued.

42. The recent elections in Nigeria were a wel cone devel opnent

after 15 years of mlitary dictatorship. However, human rights violations
conti nued and nust be addressed by the new Governnent when it took office. O
particul ar concern was the situation of the people of QOgoniland, a region that
had been subjected to serious environnmental degradation at the hands of

i nternational oil conpanies and repression at the hands of the Nigerian
security forces. There were thousands of Ogoni people living in exile or

| angui shing in prison wthout being brought to trial

43. The repressive decrees promul gated by the previous regi me nust be
repeal ed, and all political prisoners nust be rel eased; there nust be freedom
of the press and assenbly, and the mlitary forces currently stationed in the
Delta region nust be withdrawn and the people allowed to express their views
wi thout fear of reprisals. Until the Government had taken those steps, the
Speci al Rapporteur should continue to fulfil his mandate with respect to

Ni geri a.

44, M. QUGAEY (Franciscans International) said that there was anple

evi dence that the situation of human rights in Mexico was deteriorating.
Mlitarization had increased, particularly in indigenous regions such as

Chi apas, Cuerrero and Oaxaca. The military controlled the popul ation
especi al ly indi genous people, by arbitrarily assum ng civilian functions that
did not fall under its authority, such as the control of immgration papers
and setting up illegal checkpoints. The mlitary also conducted so-called
soci al work progranmes that were designed around mlitary intelligence
objectives. There were also indications that the mlitary and menmbers of the
Mexi can Government were involved in organizing paranmilitary groups. The



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 10

Conmi ssion shoul d take action on the situation of human rights in Mexico using
the existing United Nations themati c nechani snms and, shoul d consider the
appoi ntment of a special country rapporteur

45, Hi s organi zation remai ned seriously concerned about the situation of
religious mnorities in Pakistan, particularly with respect to the separate
el ectoral system the Bl aspheny Laws of the Penal Code and the Government's
attenpt to adopt the Shariah Bill.

46. The situation of human rights in Col onbia continued to worsen; it was
the nost serious in South Anerica and one of the gravest in the world. 1In the
past year, nore than 20 human rights defenders had been killed there. He thus
wel comed the recent changes in the Ofice of the H gh Conmm ssioner for Human
Ri ghts at Bogotd, and requested that it publish a plan of action for the
forthcom ng year; his organi zation also called for the nobilization of other
United Nations nechanisnms to conmplenment the Ofice's work and in particul ar
for ajoint visit to Colonbia and a joint report to the Conmi ssion at its
fifty-sixth session of an appointed special rapporteur on human rights

def enders together with the Special Rapporteurs on torture and other cruel

i nhuman or degrading treatnment or punishnent, on extrajudicial, sumuary or
arbitrary executions and on the independence of judges and | awyers and of the
Representative of the Secretary-General on internally displaced persons. |If
such a joint visit and report could not be arranged, his organization
recommended that the Comm ssion should at its fifty-sixth session, decide to
appoi nt a special rapporteur on the situation of human rights in Col ombi a.

47. M. LEGESSE (African Comm ssion of Health and Human Ri ghts Pronoters)
sai d there had been massive deportations of ethnic Eritreans living in
villages in the Tigrai region in Ethiopia. They had been dispersed and driven
into the adjoining regions of Eritrea. Al 56 villages in one district had
been renoved in an act of creeping ethnic cleansing which was of the npst

ruthl ess and thorough kind. After the deportees had settled inside Eritrea,
their tents had then been bonbed by Ethiopian aircraft at night, although they
were clearly labelled “UNHCR" in |large blue letters.

48. Civilian comunities in Eritrea had been bonbed by the Ethiopian air
force in six locations along the 625-m | e border. Another conmunity, well
inside Eritrea and not in the contested zone, had been bonbed wi th napal m and
150 homes set on fire; sonmetinmes cluster bonbs were used. His organization
urged the Conmmi ssion to exam ne those violations of humanitarian |aw and to
halt them before they turned into sonething still nore heinous.

49. Ms. ARIFIN (Asian Legal Resource Centre) said that, although Indonesia
had undergone vast changes in 1998, human rights abuses in many regions had
not been stopped or investigated. One of the regions nost seriously affected
by human rights abuses was Aceh in Sumatra. From 1989 to 1998 the province
had been designated a mlitary operation zone, because of the presence of
so-cal |l ed separatist groups, during which tinme the State security apparatus
had commtted a variety of human rights violations, which had unfortunately
not ended with President Habi bie' s accession to power and the cancellation of
the mlitary operation zone.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 11

50. In January 1999, the mlitary had attacked a conmmunity in Kandang

descri bed as a base for the Aceh Merdeka (Free Aceh) novenent, resulting in
several people being killed and wounded. A nunber of menbers of a conmunity
accused of being separatist then kidnapped and killed sonme sol di ers, whereupon
the mlitary massacred nore than 10 people. No action whatsoever had been
taken by the Governnment to investigate, prosecute and punish those
responsi bl e.

51. Her organi zation therefore requested the Commission to urge the
Government of Indonesia to invite the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial
summary or arbitrary executions to visit Indonesia and Aceh in 1999 so that
she could report to the Commi ssion at its next session. Furthernore, in the
context of the Menmorandum of Understandi ng between the Government of |ndonesia
and the Hi gh Conmi ssioner for Human Rights, the Conm ssion should reconmend
the inclusion of a relief and rehabilitation programe and conmpensation to the
victinms and survivors of human rights violations in Aceh.

52. Ms. KESSLER (National Council of German Wonmen's Organizations, Federa
Uni on of Wbnen's Organi zati ons and Wonen's Group of Gernman Associ ations),
havi ng wel comed the report of the Special Rapporteur on the situation of human
rights in Afghanistan (E/ CN. 4/1999/40), quoted froma letter her organization
had received froman Afghan worman working for an NGO i nside Afghanistan. She
wote that her experience in the field had shown her that forcing the Taliban
to accept and honour wonen's rights was only a part of the process of hel ping
Af ghan women, who had borne the brunt of the war. True reformcould be
instigated only through the internal mechanisnms of society, one such nmechani sm
bei ng the empowerment of women through econom c i ndependence, education and
better health facilities. The NGO for which she worked was targeti ng wonen as
the direct recipients of grass-roots projects, such as training wonen teachers
and i ncome-generation progranmes for wonen. |Its aimwas to help wonen to help
t hensel ves in their struggle.

53. Her organi zation requested all Governnments and United Nations agencies
engaged i n devel opment and aid work in Afghanistan to nake respect for wonen's
human rights a part of their criterion for assistance. The Special Rapporteur
shoul d continue his work, and should investigate wonen's human rights in
particul ar working closely with the Special Rapporteur on viol ence agai nst
woren, its causes and consequences.

54. M. FAH (Anti-Slavery International) said that, in Shan State, the
programes of mass forced relocations carried out by the mlitary reginme in
Myanmar since 1996 were still continuing, often repeatedly, as the nmlitary
consol idated their control and prevented people fromresettling, depriving
them of all neans of livelihood. Relocated villagers were not allowed to go
nmore than three mles fromtheir relocation sites and, if they returned to
their old villages, ran the risk of being shot. There was docunentary

evi dence of 312 extrajudicial killings in 1998, including wonen and children
There was al so docunentary evidence of 58 cases of rape by the mlitary, with
officers involved in nost of them Rape was condoned as a means of
intimdating |ocal populations. In January 1999 al one, there had been 12 rape
cases involving mnors.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 12

55. Peopl e t hroughout Shan State were being forced to work wit hout paynent
on mlitary bases, growing crops for the mlitary on | and that had been seized
fromthem working on mlitary business and infrastructure projects, and as
porters. The mlitary was carrying out a strategy of ethnic cleansing and
denogr aphi ¢ engi neering. The Representative of the Secretary-General on
internally displaced persons should investigate the situation, and the

i nternational comunity should provide the victins with humanitarian
assi st ance.

56. M. MOUSSALI (Special Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in
Rwanda) said that the statements and recomendati ons he had heard with regard
to Rwanda had been extremely useful and reflected the concern of the

i nternational comunity. He had also noted the reply by the observer for
Rwanda.

57. The first elections in that country had passed off very well,
establishing a basic adm nistrative structure, and everything possible nust be
done to ensure that the new National Unity and Reconciliation Comm ssion and

t he National Human Ri ghts Commi ssion were able to play their full roles. The
menbers of the National Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion woul d be appointed by the
Nat i onal Assenbly towards the end of April 1999, and he | ooked forward to
meeti ng them

58. M. PINHEIRO (Speci al Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in
Burundi) said that a contradictory picture had energed fromthe discussion of

the situation of human rights in Burundi. On the one hand, the war continued,
with very serious violations of human rights and humanitarian | aw, on the
ot her hand, the level of participation had risen. 1In large parts of the

country, some degree of security had returned, and the suspension of econom c
sanctions would have a very positive effect on daily lives, especially of
worren and children. |Inprovenents were occurring in the cost of living and in
heal th services and educati on and the popul ati on was gradual |y becom ng better
i nfornmed.

59. Every effort had to be nade to increase the hopes and confidence of men
and wonren of good faith, but a great deal renmained to be done before a State
based on the rule of |aw was established. The canpaign had to continue

agai nst inpunity, against serious violations of human rights, and in support
of the reformof the judiciary, the police and the arny, so that the
confidence of all strata of society in the State institutions could be
restored. The international comunity nust be patient but, at the sane tine,
shoul d denonstrate its comritnent to the people and the Governnent of Burundi

60. Ms. VILLARAN (I nternational Young Catholic Students) said that there was
an alarmng increase in human rights violations in Guatemala. The

assassi nation of Monsignor CGerardi had denonstrated the extent to which the

| egal systemthere | acked i ndependence. The situation of inpunity had been
denounced by the Church and by Guatemal an NGOs. Lawyers were subject to
pressure fromoutside the | egal system Judges were unable to check on

i nvestigations. Obstruction of justice by the executive branch was tol erated,
and threats and intimdation against officials in the | egal system continued.




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 13

61. Guat emal a coul d not be renmoved fromthe Comm ssion's agenda because
there had to be a | engthy and thoroughgoi ng nonitoring of the situation of
human rights in that country. United Nations technical assistance to the
Government of Cuatemal a should al so be nmonitored periodically by the

Conmmi ssion. Her organi zation requested the Commi ssion to consider, at its
fifty-sixth session, a report on the results that had been achieved in the
first two years of the technical assistance programre. Lastly, her

organi zati on requested the Governnment of Guatermala to fulfil the undertakings
it had given to the international conmmunity and to set a date for inviting the
Speci al Rapporteurs on the independence of judges and | awers and on freedom
of opi nion and expression.

62. M. REQUESENS (International Federation of Action of Christians for the
Abolition of Torture) said that the situation of human rights in Mexico
continued to deteriorate. The Governnent had neither ratified the Optiona
Protocol to the International Covenant of Civil and Political Ri ghts nor nade
t he decl aration under article 22 of the Torture Convention that it recognized
the conpetence of the Comm ttee against Torture to receive and consider
conmuni cati ons fromor on behalf of individuals. Since inpunity was a regular
feature of human rights violation in Mexico, his organization called on the
Commi ssion to urge the Governnment of Mexico to take steps to reduce the nunber
of human rights violations and, at the international level, to ratify the
Optional Protocol and nake the declaration under article 22 of the Torture
Convention; to consider the situation of human rights in Mexico in the |ight
of information available to the various United Nations bodies and the

Organi zation of American States (OAS); to urge the Governnment of the

United States of America to close its arned forces school at Benning, Georgia,
and to appoint a special rapporteur on the situation of human rights in

Mexi co.

63. Ms. RUPPRECHT (International Institute for Peace) said that societies
usi ng the | anguage of religious fundanmentalismto inpose their own ideol ogy on
ot hers and supporting their actions with sophisticated weapons and m sl eadi ng
propaganda, did not give credence to denocratic val ues based on universa
freedons as defined in the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts.

64. The Tal i ban forces in Afghanistan had cormitted a | arge nunber of
political and other extrajudicial killings; they had, for instance, carried
out a mass slaughter of civilians and prisoners after the capture of
Mazar-i-Sharif in August 1998. Afghani stan under the Taliban regime was a
prime exanple of the gross violation of human rights and fundanental freedons
of the citizenry, particularly wonen.

65. I n Paki stan, groups such as Harkat-ul - Ansar and Lashkar - e- Tayba

di spl ayed a common i deol ogi cal pattern consisting of bigotry and the use of
weapons and terror to denolish all norms of civil society. According to the
International Institute for Strategic Studies, there were Harkat-ul - Ansar
offices in many parts of the world and there was no check on their
fund-raising and recruiting activities. In March 1999, the Pakistani human
rights activist, Ansar Burney, had been told by the Government to vacate his
office in Karachi after he had begun to raise his voice agai nst human and
civil rights violations and extrajudicial killings in the country. Indeed a



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 14

nunber of human rights activists from Paki stan had not been allowed to
participate in the current session of the Comm ssion on one pretext or
anot her .

66. Her organi zation wished to express its concern at the current crisis in
Kosovo and at the serious danger of it spreading. The killing of unarned
civilians, including wonen and chil dren, nust be condemmed and censored. The
situation had beconme even nore serious as a result of the action by the North
Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO. Countries that sought legitimcy in

del i berate viol ence and discrimnation on the basis of religion should be
addressed and call ed upon to desist from encouraging the forces of extrem sm
terrorismand obscurantism

67. Ms. GALARZA CAMPOS (Latin Anmerican Federation of Associations of

Rel ati ves of Di sappeared Detai nees) said that, since 1993, over 180 wonen had
been murdered in Ciudad Juarez in the Mexican State of Chi huahua. Mst of the
victinms had been sexually assaulted, mutilated and hanged. Their famlies had
been deni ed effective |legal redress, the nunicipal and State authorities
tending to blane the victins for their fate. 1In addition, over 20 young women
had di sappeared since 1994. Local NGOs had succeeded in instigating officia

i nvestigations and in having a specialized agency to deal with sexual offences
and a crisis centre for sexually abused women established in the area.

However, such institutions were unable to punish the guilty persons or to
prevent further crines.

68. She requested the Commi ssion to urge the Governnent of Mexico: to
guarantee the safety of the victins' fam lies and human rights defenders; to

i nvestigate the events in Ciudad Juarez, to punish those responsible and to
conpensate the victins and their famlies; to inplenment United Nations
recommendati ons ainmed at protecting and elimnating discrimnation against
wonen and to issue invitations to visit Mexico to the Special Rapporteurs on
extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions and on the independence of
judges and | awyers. The Comm ssion should al so appoi nt a special rapporteur
on Mexico to prepare a detailed human rights report, with particular attention
to women's rights, especially in northern Mexico.

69. M. NOURI (Organization for Defending Victins of Violence) said that
there had been two devel opnments in Iran since the Comm ssion's |ast session
the Iranian mayors placed on trial had conplained of ill-treatnent during
their detention and press and NGO reactions to a series of assassinations and
murders had led to the arrest of a nunber of people and the resignation of the
M nister of Intelligence and Security. His organization had called for a
public trial

70. I n Af ghani stan, extrem st religious and ethnic policies had led to

| ar ge- scal e di spl acenment of the Afghan people. The situation of women call ed
for nore serious scrutiny by the international community. Drug production and
smuggl i ng posed a serious threat to society.

71. In Kosovo, the right of self-determ nation of the ethnic Al bani ans had
been violated. He urged the Comm ssion to focus attention on the fate of
refugees and di spl aced peopl e.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 15

72. The regine in Iraq i nposed restrictions on the Shiite clergy and
mer cenari es were being used to suppress the Kurd and Shiite comunities.
I nternational sanctions were punishing the lIraqi people rather than the
authorities.

73. In the occupied Arab territories, including East Jerusal em Palestinians
were being nmurdered, detained without trial and expropriated as a result of
I srael ' s expansioni st policies.

74. Ms. RUMSEY (Canadi an Council of Churches) said that the Sudanese
Government's human rights abuses included using fam ne as a weapon of war,
bonbing civilian centres, the systematic rape of wonmen and stripping bl ack
Sudanese of their cultural and religious identities. The Commr ssion should
call for an international investigation into crinmes against humanity in the
Sudan and extend the Special Rapporteur's mandate for another year

75. M ndful of Nigeria's history of recurring mlitary rule and of the nmany
human rights inprovenents that were still necessary there, she urged the
Commi ssion to extend the Special Rapporteur's mandate for a further year

76. All parties to the conflict in Sri Lanka were guilty of human rights
violations. She noted with concern a growi ng radicalization of young people
and an increase in violence agai nst wonmen. The Commi ssion should urge the
Governnment to inplement the recomendati ons of the three Comm ssions on

Di sappearances and to invite the Special Rapporteur on the freedom of opinion
and of expression to visit the country.

77. The capacity of the Indonesian Governnent and security forces to
facilitate a peaceful transition to denocracy in a highly unstable politica
environnent was limted. The systematic use of viol ence agai nst wonen during
riots and comunal attacks was a serious concern. Civil violence and human
rights violations in Aceh and Irian Jaya called for imrediate attention by the
rel evant special rapporteurs. International nonitoring of the June 1999

el ecti ons was essenti al .

78. The Commi ssion shoul d express support for a United Nations presence to
facilitate a cease-fire and the di sarmanent of paramilitary groups in East
Tinmor and for a process to enable the East Tinorese to exercise their right of
sel f-determ nation.

79. Her organization called on the Col onbi an Governnent to inplenent the
recomendati ons of the Hi gh Conm ssioner for Human Ri ghts concerning the
dismantling of paramlitary groups and to renove from active duty nenbers of
the State security forces who had supported the paramlitaries. She urged the
H gh Comm ssioner to submit an interimreport on the human rights situation in
Col onbia to the next session of the General Assenbly.

80. The Mexi can Governnent |acked the political will to put an end to grave
human rights violations and to seek a negotiated solution to the lowintensity
war in the country's southern States. Perpetrators of human rights violations
continued to enjoy inpunity. She urged the High Conm ssioner to visit Mexico
and to report on the situation to the Comm ssion at its next session



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 16

81. M. SELBMANN (Society for Threatened Peoples) said that Serbian troops
and paramlitary groups were comrtting genoci de against the ethnic Al banian
popul ati on of Kosovo, as defined in the Convention on the Prevention and
Puni shment of the Crine of Genocide. The Conmi ssion nmust take action to
ensure conpliance with international law, to condemm the crinmes being
commtted by the Yugoslav Governnent, to appoint a special rapporteur on
Kosovo and to initiate a reformof the Security Council that would make it
possible to prevent further cases of genoci de.

82. M. VALBUENA (Society for Threatened Peoples) said that the Col onbi an
Government, multinational conpanies and paramilitary organi zati ons had

mur dered community and trade-union | eaders and peasants and were engaged in a
systemati c genoci de of the indigenous peoples of Colombia. He urged the

Commi ssion to condemn all such acts, the perpetrators of which should be tried
in international courts, to call on the Col onbi an Government to abide by its
constitutional obligation to protect the property, life and |and of indi genous
peopl es and to appoint a special rapporteur to investigate the human rights
situation of indigenous peoples in Colonbia and to recommend the drafting of a
United Nations code of conduct for nultinational conpanies operating in

i ndi genous territory.

83. M. YAYEHE (African Association of Education for Devel opment) said that
the human rights situation in Ethiopia and Eritrea had been deteriorating
since the beginning of the conflict in May 1998. The Ethiopian regi me was
intimdating and harassing Eritrean residents, expelling tens of thousands and
confiscating their property. The Eritrean Government was guilty of simlar
ill-treatnment of Ethiopian residents.

84. The Ethiopian reginme's failure to respect the basic human rights of its
peopl e was well docunmented. It had dismantled the country's civic and
religious institutions and incarcerated their |eaders or forced theminto
exile. It terrorized the rural population by confiscating | and and property.

Muslimand Christian community | eaders were harassed and human rights
activists and journalists were nmurdered or inprisoned.

85. He appealed to the international comunity, particularly the Governnents
of countries with political and econom c influence on the Governnments of

Et hi opia and Eritrea, to work for peace and reconciliation and for the
establishnment of the basis for denpcratic governance.

86. M. ACHOUR (Organi sation tunisienne de |'éducation et de la famlle)
said that | arge-scale ethnic cleansing operations in Kosovo constituted a
violation of the right to life.

87. In Africa, large nunbers of people, particularly wonmen and chil dren
were being deprived of basic human rights by poverty, fam ne and di sease.
He urged the Conmi ssion to pay nmore attention to violations of economc,
soci al and cultural rights when exam ning particul ar situations.

88. Hi s organi zation, while retaining its critical approach, favoured a
policy of constructive participation and attached particular inportance to the
pronmoti on of a national and international human rights culture that
transcended traditional political and cultural differences.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 17

89. Ms. TEXIER (France Libertés: Fondation Danielle Mtterrand) said that
denonstrations by the Shiite community in lraq follow ng the nurder of a
Shiite dignitary and his two sons in February 1999 had been brutally
suppressed. Several denonstrators had been killed and hundreds had been
arrested. The whereabouts of hundreds of Kuwaitis captured during the Gulf
war and of 180,000 Kurds who had di sappeared during the Anfal campaign in the
1980s was still unknown. The Iraqgi Governnment refused to help address the
probl em of anti-personnel |andm nes in Iraqi Kurdistan.

90. Cvilians continued to be massacred in Al geria by armed groups. An

i ndependent investigation was necessary to clarify the situation. Over the
past six years, sonme 3,000 Algerians had di sappeared after being arrested or
abducted by the security forces. She urged the United Nations to take steps
to establish their whereabouts.

91. The Commi ssion should obtain the consent of the Governnment of Mexico to
a visit by the H gh Conm ssioner for Human Rights to investigate grave and
persi stent human rights violations there.

92. M. MARINO (Federaci 6n de Asoci aci ones de Defensa y Pronoci 6n de | os
Der echos Humanos) said that human rights violations by the Indonesian
authorities in East Tinor included arbitrary detention, torture,
ill-treatnment, absence of due process and judicial safeguards, and
restrictions on freedom of expression and association. The civilian

popul ati on was displaced by mlitary offensives. D sappearances were not
properly investigated. The Governnent allowed param litary groups and
mlitias to terrorize the popul ation. Recent prom ses of an opportunity for
the East Tinorese to exercise their right to self-determ nation had proved
false. His organization called for an end to human rights violation in East
Tinmor, the withdrawal of Indonesian troops under United Nations supervision
and the permanent installation of a United Nations peace-keeping force as well
as appropriate human rights nonitoring bodies.

93. H s organi zati on was concerned about persistent human rights violations,
i ncl udi ng di sappearances, arbitrary detention, torture and | ack of due
process, in the parts of Western Sahara occupied by the Mdroccan security
forces. Action by the United Nations and NGOs to investigate such of fences
woul d facilitate the organization of a fair and inpartial referendum so that
the Saharan people could finally exercise its right of self-determ nation

94. Hi s organi zati on was al so concerned about the proposed internationa
agreenent between the Philippines and the United States concerning the
treatnment of visiting units of the United States arnmed forces. Described by
the United States as a nmere "executive agreenment”, it contained highly

anbi guous provi sions regarding the activities such forces could undertake in
the Philippines and made no reference to the possible introduction of nuclear
weapons in violation of the Philippine Constitution. The provisions
concerning crimnal jurisdiction for punishable acts committed by United

St at es personnel underm ned the sovereign authority of the Philippine State.
The question arose whether the draft agreenment was an attenpt to establish a
new cat egory of protectorate over a country that had only recently recovered
its international sovereignty.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 18

95. M. SCOIT (International Human Ri ghts Law Group) said that all the
warring factions in Afghanistan, including the Taliban, were comritting gross
human rights violations. It was inportant to nonitor the human rights
situation in all areas, including those not controlled by the Taliban. The
Commi ssi on shoul d provide all possible assistance to Afghan NGOs whi ch found
it extremely difficult to operate effectively, particularly their wonmen
menbers. He wel comed the Special Rapporteur's report and the appoi ntnent of a
human rights advisor in Afghanistan. He trusted that the Menber States would
provi de her with the requisite support and resources.

96. He urged Nigeria to repeal such repressive legislation as State Security
Decree No. 4 of 1987 (Detention of Persons), Special Decree No. 2 (Civi

Di sturbances) invoked to execute M. Saro-Wwa and ni ne others, and Public

O fices Decree No. 4 of 1984 (protection agai nst Fal se Accusation). Violence
by the brutal State security operations continued, despite indications to the
contrary by the Special Rapporteur. He called on the Governnment to address
harnful traditional practices such as early marriage, unequal inheritance
practices and fermale genital mutilation. The Special Rapporteur's mandate
shoul d be extended.

97. Peru's Amesty Law of June 1995 attenpted to erase 15 years of egregious
human rights violations, depriving many people of |egal remedies. He urged
the Comm ssion to appeal to the Peruvian Government to wi thdraw t he Amesty
Law and to bring the perpetrators of human rights violations to justice.

98. The ability to enjoy fundamental human rights in the United States

vari ed enornmously, according to race, gender, |anguage, age and sexua
orientation, because of the Government's failure to abide by the provisions of
its Constitution and of the international human rights treaties it had
ratified. He urged the Comri ssion to follow up on those reports which had
reveal ed the gap between prom se and practice in United States human rights
protection.

Statenments in exercise of the right of reply

99. M. ASHRAF (India), referring to the statenent by the del egation of

Paki stan that it would oppose initiatives intended for donestic consunption as
an abuse of the Commi ssion and woul d use the session only for genuine and
constructive di alogue and international cooperation, said that Pakistan's
conduct, year after year, nade a nockery of such clains. [Its only interest
was to bring its bilateral or political agenda before the Comm ssion for
domestic and propaganda consi derations. Even the Mnister for Foreign Affairs
of Pakistan had taken |liberties with the truth. India categorically rejected
all the allegations made by the Mnister and the representative of Pakistan

i ncludi ng those concerning the Indian State of Jammu and Kashmir, which were
totally unfounded and sel f-serving.

100. The Indian Prime Mnister had recently travelled by bus to Pakistan as a
pat h- breaki ng gesture of friendship. India was commtted to a sustained and
constructive process of conposite dial ogue and | ooked forward to the
establishnment of a stable structure of mutually beneficial cooperation and the



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 20
page 19

i ntroduction of confidence-building neasures for the peaceful resolution of
all outstanding issues through direct bilateral dialogue. He urged Pakistan
to adhere to that agreed path.

101. M. QAZ| (Pakistan) said he fully understood the disconfiture of the
I ndi an del egation as it was forced to defend its inmoral and illegal position
on occupi ed Jamu and Kashmir. India' s horrendous human rights violations in

the territory had been extensively docunented by both Indian and internationa
human rights organizations.

102. The representative of India had failed to respond to any specific point
made by the Mnister for Foreign Affairs of Paki stan. He had been unable to
deny that India had sought Security Council nmnediation on the Kashmr dispute
in 1948, that the Council had clearly determ ned that the final disposition of
the State of Jammu and Kashmr woul d be rmade in accordance with the will of
the peopl e expressed through a plebiscite, that both India and Paki stan had
accepted the idea of a plebiscite but that no such plebiscite had ever taken
pl ace.

103. Paki stan wanted to achi eve peace and security in South Asia through

di al ogue but, owing to Indian obduracy, 50 years of talks on Kashmr had
resulted in very little action. The outburst by the representative of India

i ndicated that the current round of tal ks was headed for a sinmlar fate - an
unfortunate outcone for Pakistan, India and above all Kashmir. The Commr ssion
must not, however, allow the opportunity to slip by.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p.m




